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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK

TIMES THREE CLOTHIER, LLC,
CASENO. 1:11-¢cv-09428-PKC
Plaintiff,
V. JURY TRIAL DEMANDED
LLF USA, INC.
Defendant,

FIRST AMENDED COMPLAINT FOR PATENT INFRINGEMENT.

Times Three Clothier, LL.C (“Times Three”) sues Defendant LF USA, Inc. (“Li & Fung”)
and on information and belief, alleges as follows:

Introduction

1. Plaintiff’ Times Three owns the designs claimed in United States Design Patent
Nos. 606, 285 (“the "285 Patent™); 616,627 (“the *627 Patent”); 622,477 (“the *477 Patent”); and
623,377 (“the 377 Patent”) (collectively “the patents-in-suit®), each entitled “Garment.”
Defendant has used and coniinues to use Times Three’s patented designs in products that it
makes, uses, sells, and offers to sell, without Times Three’s permission, and has induced, and
continues to induce, others to infringe the patents-in-suit. Times Three seeks damages and/or a
disgorgement of Defendant’s total profits for patent infringement and an injunction preventing
Defendant from making, using, selling, or offering to sell, and from inducing others to make,

use, sell, or offer to sell, Plaintiff’s patented designs without permission,
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Jurisdiction and Venue

2. This is an action for patent infringement arising under the patent laws of the
United States, 35 U.S.C. §§ 271 and 281, et seq. The Court has original jurisdiction over this
patent infringement action under 28 U.S.C. §§ 1338(a).

3. Venue is proper in this Court because the Defendant is responsible for acts of
infringement occurring in the Southern District of New York as alleged in this Complaint, and
has delivered or caused to be delivered its infringing products in the Southern District of New
York.

Plaintiff Times Three

4, Times Three is a limited lability company organized and existing under the laws
of the State of New York, with its principal place of business in New York, New York.

5. Times Three is an independent manufacturer of shapewear garments that embody
innovative designs that are marketed, distributed, and sold under the well-known brand names,
Yummie Tummie®, I Am Yummie™, Tummy Tank™, Tummylicious™ (collectively,
“Yummie Tummie®”), Times Three’s expansive Yummie Tummie® product line was
conceived and designed by Heather Themson-Schindler, a fashion designer and creative director
who has contributed to many acclaimed fashion collections, including Sean John by Sean
Combs, Sweetface by Jennifer Lopez, and House of Deréon by Beyonce Knowles, An image of

the Yummie Tuminie® “Strappy Tank” appears below:
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Times Three

*Yummie Tummie - Strappy Tank”

6. Ms. Thomson-Schindler’s designs are embodied in an expansive line of Yummie
Tummic® products, ali of which offer consumers effective, comfortable, attractive and fashion-
forward women’s shapewear. Times Three has launched a range of Yummie Tummie® branded
shapewear products, including a variety of styles of tops, bottoms, apparel, and intimates for
women of all sizes. Times Three’s Yummie Tummie® line of shapewear is sold at such premium
retailers as Saks Fifth Avenue, Nordstrom, The Home Shopping Network and Bloomingdales.

7. Times Three launched its Yummie Tummie® line of shapewear garments in

January 2008, making Yummic Tummie ® the first brand of modern shapewear with an
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acsthetically pleasing design, such that it was “meant to be seen” and could be worn as
outerwear. Yummie Tummie® quickly became an overnight success. Only four months after its
launch, Yummie Tummie® was featured in the May 16, 2008 episode of the Oprah Winfiey
Show, during a segment entitled “Oprah’s Favorite Things for Summer.” Yummie Tummie®
also appeared on the Tyra Banks Show, the Today Show, E! Daily 10, and Entertainment
tonight, among nany other television appearances.

Times Three’s Design Patents

8. The United States Patent and Trademark Office issued the *285 Patent on
December 22, 2009. A copy of the *285 Patent is attached hereto as Exhibit A. Through
assigninent, Times Three is the owner of all right, title, and interest, including rights for past
infringements, in the 2835 Patent.

9. The United States Patent and Trademark Office issued the *627 Patent on June I,
2010. A copy of the *627 Patent is attached hereto as Exhibit B. Through assignment, Times
Three is the owner of all right, title, and interest, including rights for past infringements, in the
'627 Patent.

10.  The United States Patent and Trademark Office issued the '477 Patent on August
31,2010. A copy of the 477 Patent is attached hereto as Exhibit C. Through assignment, Times
Three is the owner of all right, title, and interest, including rights for past infringements, in the
*477 Patent.

11, The United States Patent and Tradeinark Office issued the *377 Patent on
September 14, 2010. A copy of the *377 Patent is attached hereto as Exhibit D. Through
assignient, Times Three is the owner of all right, title, and interest, including rights for past

infringements, in the '377 Patent,
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12.  Times Three has complied with the statutory requirement of placing a notice of
the patents-in-suit on all necessary garments it manufactures and sells.

Defendant Li & Fung

13.  Li & Fung is a Delaware corporation, with its principal place of business in New
York, NY.

Li & Fung’s Acts of Infringement

i4.  Defendant has used and continues to use the designs of the patents-in-suit in
products that it makes, uses, sells, and offers to sell, without Times Three’s permission,
including, but not limited to, Defendant’s “Logo by Lori Goldstein Instant Chic,” (Style No’s.
A214474, A199948, A209786, and A202824 (the “Knock-Off-Garments™), which Li & Fung
selts to QVC, Inc. (“QVC”). An image of the Logo — Instant Chic, Style No. A214474 appears

below:;

Li & Fung

“Logo - Instant Chic” No. A214474
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15, In 2009, Mr. Richard Darling, President of Li & Fung contacted Ms. Thomson-
Schindler and requested a meeting fo discuss Times Three’s Yummie Tummie ® line of
garments, Thereafter, Ms. Thomson-Schindler, her business partner Michelle Daray, and
Yummie Tummie® Chairman Eric Rothfeld met with Mr. Darling, whe acknowledged Yummic
Tummie®’s impressive growth since its launch, and inquired as to whether Times Three would
have any interest in working with Li & Fung. Ms. Thomson-Schindler, Ms. Daray, and Mr.
Rothfeld informed Mr. Darling that Times Three’s Yummie Tummie® line of garments were the
subject of a patent application pending with at the United States Patent and Trademark Office
that they believed would issue.

16.  Oninformation and belief, Li & Fung intentionally designed the Knock-Off-
Garments to copy the designs embodied by the patents-in-suit, in order to trade off of the
innovative, patented designs that are associated with Times Three’s Yununie Tummie® line of
shapewear garments. The design of the Knock-Off-Garments are strikingly similar to the design
of Times Three’s Yummie Tummie line of shapewear garments and the design embodied by the
patents-in-suif,

17.  Defendant was aware of the patents-in-suit at least as early as January 20, 2010,
when Times Three informed it, by letter, that the *285 Patent had issued to Times Three.

18.  Defendant was aware that it was infringing the patents-in-suit at least as early as
September 21, 2011, when Times Three sent Li & Fung a cease and desist letter, informing Li &
Fung that the Patent and Trademark Office had issued the 627, *377, and *477 Patents to Times
Three. Times Three also demanded that Li & Fung refrain from further infringing Times Three’s
patents and compensate Times Three for its past infringement. Since that time, the parties have

been unable to resolve this matter.
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19. Defendant has induced, and continues to induce others, including QVC and other
third party garment retailers and garment purchasers, to infringe the patents-in-suit by making,
using, offering for sale, and selling the Knock-Off-Garments without Times Three’s permission.

20, On information and belief, Defendant specifically intended to cause QVC to
infringe the patents-in-suit and aided and abetted QVC’s direct infringement of the patents-in-
suit by, inter alia, convincing QVC to selt the Knock-Off-Garments, providing marketing and
promotionat materials for the Knock-Off-Garments to QVC, delivering the Knock-Off-Garments
to QVC, and otherwisc encouraging retail sales of the Knock-Off-Garments by QVC.

21, On information and belief, Defendant has induced, and continues to induce others,
including Ms. Lori Goldstein and other third party garment designers to infringe the patents-in-
suit by making, using, offering for sale, and selling the Knock-Off-Garments without Times
Three’s permission.

22, On information and belief, Defendant specifically intended to cause Ms,
Goldstein to infringe the patents-in-suit and aided and abetted Ms. Goldstein’s direct
infringement of the patenis-in-suit by, inter alia, providing samples of Times Three’s Yummie
Tummie ® garments to Ms. Goldstein, knowing the design of the same to be patented, and
requesting that Ms. Goldstein make garment(s) that would appear substantially similar to Times
Three’s Yummie Tummie® garments.

23, On information and belief, Defendant has induced, and continues to induce others,
including unknown third party importers to infringe the patents-in-suit by importing the Knock-
Off-Garments without Times Three’s permission from the Philippines, where they are

manufactured.
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24.  On information and belief, Defendant specifically intended to cause third party
importers to infringe the patents-in-suit and aided and abetted such third party importers’ direct
infringement of the patents-in-suit by, inter alia, delivering the Knock-Off-Garments to third
parties in the Philippines and directing them to import the Knock-Off-Garments to the United
States.

COUNT 1
(DESIGN PATENT INFRINGEMENT, 35 U.S.C. §§ 271 AND 281)

25.  Times Three incorporates the allegations contained in paragraphs I through 24 as
though fully set forth herein.

26. L.i & Fung has been and, on information and belief, still is making, using, offering
to sell, selling, and/or importing in the United States Knock-Off-Garments that infringe the *285
Patent in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271(a).

27.  Oninformation and belief, Li & Fung has been and still is actively inducing
others to infringe the *285 Patent in violation 0of 35 U.S.C. § 271(b).

28.  Oninformation and belief, Li & Fung’s infringeinent has been intentional and
wiltful, making this an exceptional case.

29. By reason of Li & Fung’s infringement, Times Three has suffered, and unless Li
& Fung’s conduct is permanently enjoined, will continue to suffer, actual damages and
irreparable harm, as to which it has no adequate remedy at law.

COUNT 11
(DESIGN PATENT INFRINGEMENT, 35 U.S.C. §§ 271 AND 281)

30.  Times Three incotporates the allegations contained in paragraphs 1 through 24

and 26 through 29 as though fully set forth herein.
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31.  Li & Fung has been and, on information and belief, still is making, using, offering
to sell, selling, and/or importing in the United States Knock-Off-Garments that infiinge the *627
Patent in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271(a).

32.  On information and belief, Li & Fung has been and still is actively inducing
others to infringe the *627 Patent in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271(b).

33.  On information and belief, Li & Fung’s infringement has been intentional and
willful, making this an exceptional case.

34. By reason of Li & Fung’s infringement, Times Three has suffered, and unless Li
& Fung’s conduct is permanently enjoined, will continue to suffer, actual damages and
irreparable harm, as to which it has no adequate remedy at law.

COUNT III
(DESIGN PATENT INFRINGEMENT, 35 U.S.C. §§ 271 AND 281)

35.  Times Three incorporates the allegations contained in paragraphs 1 through 24, 26
through 29, and 31 through 34 as though fully set forth herein.

36.  Li & Fung has been and, on information and belief, still is making, using, offering
to seli, selling, and/or importing in the United States Knock-Off-Garments that infringe the *477
Patent in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271(a).

37.  On information and belief, Lt & Fung has been and still is actively inducing
others to infringe the *477 Patent in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271(b).

38.  Oninformation and belief, Li & Fung’s infringement has been intentional and
willful, making this an exceptional case.

39, By reason of Li & Fung’s infringement, Times Three has suffered, and unless L
& Fung’s conduct is permanently enjoined, will continue to suffer, actual damnages and

irreparable harm, as to which it has no adequate remedy at law.
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COUNT IV
(DESIGN PATENT INFRINGEMENT, 35 U.S.C. §§ 271 AND 281)

40.  Times Three incorporates the allegations contained in paragraphs 1 through 24, 26
through 29, 31 through 34, and 36 through 39 as though fully set forth herein.

41,  Li & Fung has been and, on information and belief, still is making, using, offering
to sell, selling, and/or importing in the United States Knock-Off-Garments that infringe the *377
Patent in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271(a).

42.  Oninforimation and belief, Li & Fung has been and still is actively inducing
others to infringe the *377 Patent in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271(b).

43, On information and belief, Li & Fung’s infringement has been intentional and
willful, making this an exceptional case.

44, By reason of Li & Fung’s infringement, Times Three has suffered, and unless Li
& Fung’s conduct is permanently enjoined, will continue to suffer, actual damages and
irreparabie harm, as to which it has no adequate remedy at law.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, Times Three respectfully requests that this Court:

1. Enter judgment in favor of Times Three;

2, Permanently enjoin Li & Fung and its predecessors, successors, divisions,
subsidiaries, or joint ventures thercof, together with any and all parent or affiliated
companies or corporations, and all officers, directors, employees, agents, atiorneys,
representatives, those acting in privity or concern with Li & Fung, or on its behalf,
from further infringing the *285 Patent, and from inducing others to infringe the *285

Patent;
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3.

NY 73830340v1

Permanently enjoin Li & Fung and its predecessors, successors, divisions,
subsidiaries, or joint ventures thereof, together with any and all parent or affiliated
companies or corporations, and all officers, directors, employees, agents, attorneys,
representatives, those acting in privity or concern with Li & Fung, or on its behalf,
from further infringing the ’627 Patent, and from inducing others to infringe the *627
Patent;

Permanently enjoin Li & Fung and its predecessors, successors, divisions,
subsidiaries, or joint ventures thereof, together with any and all parent or affiliated
comnpanies or corporations, and all officers, directors, employees, agents, attorneys,
representatives, those acting in privity or concern with Li & Fung, or on its behalf,
from further infringing the *477 Patent, and from inducing others to infringe the 477
Patent;

Permanently enjoin Li & Fung and its predecessors, successors, divisions,
subsidiaries, or joint ventures thereof, together with any and all parent or affiliated
companies or corporations, and all officers, directors, employees, agents, attorneys,
representatives, those acting in privity or concern with Li & Fung, or on its behalf,
from further infringing the *377 Patent, and from inducing others to infringe the *377
Patent;

Award Times Three its actual damages under 35 U.S.C, § 284 in an amount to be
determined at trial, including its lost profits resulting from sales of the Knock-Off-

Garments by Li & Fung and QVC;
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Award Times Three enhanced damages up to three times the amount found or
assessed under 35 U.S.C. § 284, as a resull of Li & Fung’s knowing and will[ul
infringement;

Award Times Three the disgorged total profits of Li & Fung under 35 U.S.C. §289
from infringing the patents-in-suitf in an amount to be determined at irial;

Award Times Three punitive damages becanse of Li & Fung’s knowing, willful, and
deliberate bad faith acts of unfair competition in an amount to be determined at trial,
Award Times Three all of its actual costs and reasonable attorneys’ fees in this action
as authorized by 35 U.S.C. § 285; and

Grant to Times Three such other and further relief as may be just and warranted under
the circumstances.

JURY TRIAL DEMAND

Times Three demands a frial by jury on all issues so triable,

Dated: March 2, 2012 By: ja/u/\-% MMQDM\O/(’
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“stéven B. Pokolitow
Laura Goldbard George
raly Donner
William J. Seymour
STROOCK & STROOCK & LAVAN LLP
180 Maiden Lane
New York, NY 10038
(212) 806-5400
Email: Spokotilow@stroock.com
Email: Idonner@stroock.com
Email: wseymour@stroock.com

Attorneys for Plaintiff Times Three Clothier LLC
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
I, William J. Seymour, hercby certify that on the 2nd day of March, 2012, the FIRST
AMENDED COMPLAINT FOR PATENT INFRINGEMENT was filed with the Clerk
of the Court and that a true and correct copy of the foregoing was served via email and
overnight delivery on the following counsel:

Lara A. Moffatt, Esq.
James P. Jeffry, Esq.
SALANS LLP

620 Fifth Avenue
New York, NY 10020
Imoffatti@salans.com
jjeffry(@salans.com

Attorneys for Defendant LF US4, Inc.

Y
Dated; March 2, 2012 wa /4‘(\/7/%//

William J#° Seytiﬁmr
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FIG. 2 is a rear clevation view thereof;
FIG, 3 is a right elevation view thercof;
FIG. 4 is a left elevation view thercof,

FIG, 5 is a right side elevation view of Embodiment 2, ofa
multi-fabric garment, where the front and rear elevation
views are the samte as FIGS. -2; and,

FIG, 6 is a left elevation view of Embodiment 2, of a multi-
fabric garment.
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(57) CLAIM

‘Fhe ornamental design for a gannent, as shown and descrihed
herein.

DESCRIPTION

FIG. 1 is a front elevation view of Embodiment 1, of a gar-
ment;

FIG. 2 is a rear elevation view thereof;
FIG. 3 is a right elevation view lhereof,
FIG. 4 is a left elevanion view thereof;

FIG. § is a right side elevation view of Embodiment 2, of a
garment, where the fromt and rear elevation views are the
same as FIGS. 1-2; and,

FIG. 6 is alefi elevation view of Embodiment 2, ofa garment.

The phantom and/or broken lHnes are for illustrative purposes
only and form no part of the claimed design, The broken lines
depieling the stitching shown in the drawings are for environ-
mental structure onty and form no part of the claimed design.
The broken lnes depiefing the human form shown in lhe
drawings are for environmental structure only and form no
part of the claimed design.
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